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Waleed A. Al Houti
Chairman of the Board



Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of my brothers and members of the Board of Directors, | would like to welcome
you to the AGM for the financial year ended 31/12/2023.

I'd like to start our meeting with thanks and gratitude to the shareholders for their support
and continuous trust and belief in our ability as a team committed to our aspirations and
putting them into reality. The year 2023 was a pivotal year in the performance of the
company through several elements, the most important of which is the subsidiaries in
terms of profitability and reap the benefits by its implementation of its strategy, which is
based on the principle of conservation and measurement of risks, optimizing the existing
resources, and increasing the level of mutual cooperation between subsidiaries on the
level of operations in order to achieve maximum growth over the financial year 2023.

Highlights 2023:
1. Net profit before ECL- Provision KD 1,345,981 and Net profit after ECL-provision KD 1,037,304.
2. Booked ECL KD 309 K (Mainly O&G), Inventory provision of KD 51 K.

As for the company’s vision for the future in 2024 we will continue to strengthen and support the
status of our subsidiaries in the development projects of Oil and Gas sector. This to be achieved
through obtaining the required qualifications of Oil and Gas companies and international
construction companies to enable us participation in the largest possible number of projects. It's
expected that there will be an increase in the company’s operating profit due to the new contracts
that have been awarded to the Subsidiaries which will enhance the company’s current position.

In conclusion, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my appreciation for your continuous support to further success and achievements of Al-Dorra

Petroleum Services.

Sincerely,

Waleed A. Al Houti

Chairman of the Board
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Al-Dorra Petroleum services is a Kuwaiti Shareholding Co. (Closed)
founded in 2006 with a paid up Capital of KD 28,144,000 million in 2020
decreased to KD 26,384,194 million, the company was founded with the
goal of providing integrated and reliable services in the energy and
petrochemicals sector, through a comprehensive portfolio of subsidiaries
and its network of strategic partners.

The Portfolio Growth has been achieve through a series of Acquisitions,
Grass root initiative, Joint ventures and Strategic alliances focusing on
various segments of Kuwait Energy Sector.

AlDorra strategy is to continue to grow and support its existing portfolio
to expand its scope of services and markets, and to leverage the synergy
among its current subsidiaries, in order to provide integrated reliable
services in the targeted energy and petrochemicals sectors.
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Final Draft (Introduction about the subsidiaries for the Website and

brochure)

Warba National Contracting Company (WNCC) is a Kuwaiti company
established in 1976, with over 42 years of experience as one of leading
agent/representative of various manufactures in oil and gas industry;
include manufacturers of pumps, compressors, instrumentation,
heat exchangers, reactors, valves, technology and manpower. With
experienced sales and commercial staff, well-versed with the Kuwait
market, WNCC is focused in developing the business of our numerous
principles.

The company’s objectives to continuous pursuit of excellence in
creating a value added after sales service, which enhances the quality
of the products we represent

&

WARBA NATIONAL

Contracting Co. W.L.L

Klinger Warba Gasket Manufacturing Company (Klinger) is a Kuwaiti
manufacturer of gaskets established in 1997 with over 21 years of
innovation and gasket production experience with local knowledge
and marketing experience. As the only manufacturer of gaskets in
Kuwait, Klinger has long term contracts with all the major industries in
the country.

Klinger is an I1SO 9001 certified facility in Subhan, Kuwait, which
manufactures all types of Soft Cut, Spiral Wound, Heat Exchanger, and
Kcom- profile gaskets for the Oil, Petrochemical, and Power Generation.

(&

Klinger
Warba

Warba Industrial Advanced Services Center (WIASC) is a Kuwaiti ISO
certified service center established as division under Warba National
Group in 1976 to provide service center for Valves, Actuators, and
performs servicing, calibration and testing of valves both online
and offline as per manufacture procedures as well as API, ASME and
other International standards. (BS, FCl, ISA, SHELL DEP, EN). Since its
inception WIASC has supported many of Kuwait’s oil and power sector
projects and shutdowns with its various services. In addition WIASC
also provide wielding and fabrication services to Kuwait Oil and Energy
Sectors contractors.

WIASC's goal is to assist our clients in achieving the highest efficiency
and productivity with the world’s latest technologies

Annual Report 2023
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Gulf Safety is a Kuwaiti company established in 1979 with over 39 years
of experience in fire protection and alarm system design, installation
and maintenance.

Gulf Safety is a Category 2 approved KFD contractor with 1SO9001
certification, and has participated numerous in gas installations
becoming one of the market leaders in its field. Company is approved
as a service provider for Bauer Compressor and Interspiro Breathing
Apparatus, and as an installer of Fire Eater (Denmark) and Nohmi Bosai
(Japan) in the Kuwait Market.

International Warba Coating (IWC) establishedin 1997 asa Joint Venture
between Warba National Group (51% ownership) and Courtaulds
(International Paint), now AKZO-Nobel (49% ownership).

IWC is a world leader in the manufacture of On-shore and Off-shore
protective coatings, marine coatings, industrial coatings, fire protection
paints, yacht and building paints and has over 40 factories worldwide.
IWC was established to manufacture the full range of products to the
highest quality standards of its mother company. The factory has a
range of grinding and dispersion equipment enabling it to manufacture
a variety of products in different batch sizes, in addition to the more
regular product situated in Subhan Industrial Area.

IWCis ideally located to provide customers with the security of a global
brand and the responsiveness of local service. This service includes
a high level of technical resource to assist with advice, ensuring
specifications, product service and support tailored to meet customer
needs in the most cost effective way

Cumberland Cathodic Protection Limited (CCPL) established in 1912 in
UK when the Commander Elliot Cumberland developed an electrolytic
prevention system which was to be the firstimpressed current Cathodic
Protection system commercially available.

CCPL has provided Cathodic Protection serving throughout the
world for more than 80 years. The company pioneered innovation in
the design of impressed current Cathodic Protection technology for
Power Stations, Jetties, Pipelines, concrete structures and other buried
or immersed metal structure. CCPL UK operation aim in Kuwait is to
provide continued Cathodic Protection supply and commissioning
services to the Kuwait market.

Annual Report 2023
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Kuwaiti Distributor Company for Chemicals (KDC) established in 2006
as distributor of number of chemicals ranging from high specialty
engineered chemicals to commodity chemicals. KDC also offers
a broad portfolio of specialty chemicals designed to support and
enhance drilling, cementing, & completion, and stimulation process.

KDC aim to continue providing specific solutions for defined customer
industries which include plastics, automotive, refineries, oilfield and
mining, as well as water treatment.

EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE (CLOSED)
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Oil and Gas Engineering (O&G) is a Kuwaiti limited liability company
established in 1976 with over 42 years of experience in the Kuwait
construction sector.

0O&G is one of the premium companies in the Kuwait oil and gas sector
in the fields of Electro-Mechanical, Civil Construction, Maintenance
activities, Fabrication-Installation works, Human Resource Service and
Rental of Heavy Construction Equipment

Capital: KD 9.5 M (U$31.14)
Total Manpower: 1600
Equipments: more than 450 Light & Heavy Duty and fixed equipment.

Land and facilities: Approx 10,000 square meter

<o

0&G

Seoul Inspection & Testing Co. Ltd Middle East (SITCO ME) established
in 2014 as a Joint Venture between Gulf Safety (51% ownership) and
Seoul Inspection & Testing Co. Ltd Korea (49% ownership) an Inspection
Company founded in 1991 and has developed into a total Inspection
Service Provider in various fields of refineries, petrochemical facilities,
power plants, gas facilities, manufacturing making plants and steel
structures.

SITCO offer a wide range of highly-specialized services such as Non-
Destructive Test, Third Party Inspection, Supervision, Shipbuilding
&Offshore Inspection, Facility Diagnosis and Technical Consulting. For
over 25 years, SITCO have been delivering Inspection Services in the
world for Qil & Gas, Petrochemical and Power Plants, gaining global
recognition with the aim of becoming a world leader of the Inspection
Industry.

SITCO middle East since its inception has become a competing force in
the Kuwait project sector

Annual Report 2023
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Consolidated financial statements and
independent auditor’s report
For the year ended 31 December 2023
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Al Dorra Petroleum Services Company K.S.C. (Closed) and its subsidiaries
State of Kuwait

Consolidated financial statements and independent auditor’s report
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Contents

Independent auditor’s report

Consolidated statement of financial position

Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Consolidated statement of cash flows

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Report on the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial
statements of Al Dorra Petroleum Services Company
KS.C. (Closed) (the “Parent Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”),
which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the financial year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated
financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2023, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the financial year then ended in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IFRS
Accounting Standards”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the consolidated financial statements
in State of Kuwait, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2022 were audited
by another auditor who expressed an unmodified
opinion on those consolidated financial statements
dated 13 March 2023.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the
report of the Directors but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Ouropiniononthe consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent  with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated if,
based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Annual Report 2023
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Responsibilities of Management for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The management is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IFRS Accounting Standards”),
and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

PETROLEUM SERVICES K.S.C. (CLOSED)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AL DORRA
PETROLEUM SERVICES COMPANY K.S.C. (CLOSED) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATE OF KUWAIT (CONTINUED)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Responsibilities of Management for

the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
managementisresponsible forassessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Parent Company’s management either intends
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we

exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due tofraud orerror, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of

Annual Report 2023



accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Parent Company’s management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the Parent
Company’s management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentations structure and
contentofthe consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the

Annual Report 2023
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entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit

and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

PETROLEUM SERVICES K.S.C. (CLOSED)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AL DORRA
PETROLEUM SERVICES COMPANY K.S.C. (CLOSED) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
STATE OF KUWAIT (CONTINUED)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Inour opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and the consolidated financial
statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors’ relating to
these consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further report that we obtained
the information and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the consolidated
financial statements incorporate the information that is required by the Companies’ Law No. 1 of 2016
and its Executive Regulations, as amended, and by the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation
and Articles of Association, as amended, that an inventory was duly carried out and that, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies’ Law No. 1 of 2016 and its Executive Regulations,
as amended, nor of the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as
amended, have occurred during the financial year ended 31 December 2023, that might have had a material
effect on the business of the Group or its consolidated financial position.

Qais M. Al Nisf
License No. 38 “A”
BDO Al Nisf & Partners
Kuwait: 4 March 2024
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Consolidated statement of financial position

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Goodwill

Property, plant and equipment
Right of utilization

Intangible assets

Investment in an associate
Investment in a joint venture

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FvOCI”)

Current assets

Inventories

Work in progress

Trade and other receivables
Contract assets

Due from related parties
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Share capital

Statutory reserve
Voluntary reserve
Revaluation surplus

Fair value reserve of financial assets at fair value through other compre-
hensive income (“FVOCI”)

Accumulated losses

Equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Employees’ end of service benefits
Term loans

Current liabilities

Due to related parties
Term loans

Trade and other payables
Bank overdrafts

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Notes

14
15
16
17
18
19

20
21
22

23
24

18

24

25
19,26

Q

AL DORRA
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2023 2022
KD KD
3,673,230 3,673,230
1,214,147 1,203,169
6,805,000 4,641,000

988,096 988,096
275,964 354,580

- 21,920
1,012,647 1,512,647

13,969,084 12,394,642
2,505,423 2,998,849
7,007,353 6,841,968

11,842,505 10,517,029
3,662,831 3,794,192
1,268,170 1,290,599
2,176,150 1,768,578

28,462,432 27,211,215

42,431,516 39,605,357

26,384,194 26,384,194

30,368 30,368
30,368 30,368
3,544,510 1,396,510

(1,812,271) (1,312,271)

(8,207,621) (8,895,081)

19,969,548 17,634,088
1,504,058 1,338,214

21,473,606 18,972,302
1,014,334 972,285

11,288,000 12,388,000

12,302,334 13,360,285

63,305 65,851
1,425,000 975,000
6,496,350 5,840,364

670,921 392,055
8,655,576 7,273,270
20,957,910 20,633,555
42,431,516 39,605,857

The accompanying notes on pages 9 to 51 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
N

Waleed Abdullah Ebrahim Al Houti

Chairman
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Operating revenues
Operating costs
Gross profit

Impairment of goodwill

Share of results of an associate

Share of results of a joint venture

Impairment of investment in a joint venture
Provision for obsolete and slow moving inventories
Provision for excepted credit losses no longer required
Provision for expected credit losses

General and administrative expenses

Other income

Finance costs

Profit / (loss) before Zakat

Zakat

Profit / (loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests

Notes

27

7
11
12
12
14
18
15,16,17
28
29

2023 2022

KD KD
14,935,915 13,706,035
(11,328,008) (10,586,439)
3,607,907 3,119,596
- (156,179)

(78,616) (94,302)

- (754)

(21,920) -
(50,782) (46,921)

- 17,796

(308,677) (1,999,086)
(2,118,225) (1,853,232)
933,571 624,899
(904,454) (669,391)
1,058,804 (1,057,574)
(21,500) -
1,037,304 (1,057,574)
687,460 (1,315,369)
349,844 257,795
1,037,304 (1,057,574)

The accompanying notes on pages 9 to 51 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Net profit / (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income / (loss) items:

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss:

Gain on revaluation of right of utilization

Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“"FVOCI”)

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests

Notes

13

AL DORRA
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2023 2022

KD KD
1,037,304 (1,057,574)
2,164,000 -
(500,000) -
1,664,000 -
2,701,304 (1,057,574)
2,335,460 (1,315,369)
365,844 257,795
2,701,304 (1,057,574)

The accompanying notes on pages 9 to 51 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

2023 2022
Notes KD KD

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (loss) for the year 1,037,304 (1,057,574)
Adjustments for:
Impairment of goodwill 7 - 156,179
Depreciation 8 282,602 284,311
Share of results of an associate 1 78,616 94,302
Share of results of a joint venture 12 - 754
Impairment of investment in a joint venture 12 21,920 -
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories 14 50,782 46,921
Provision for expected credit losses 15,16,17 308,677 1,999,086
Provision for excepted credit losses no longer required 18 - (17,796)
Finance costs 904,454 669,391
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 23 172,210 212,775
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits no longer required 23 (3,595) (4,269)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 29 (198,918) (34,000)

2,654,052 2,350,080
Changes in working capital:
Inventories 442,644 (348,079)
Work in progress (322,618) (493,201)
Trade and other receivables (1,422,521) (374,235)
Contract assets 76,962 (1,115,140)
Trade and other payables 617,157 (194,041)
Due from related parties 22,429 15,872
Due to related parties (2,546) 10,867
Net cash flows generated from / (used in) operations 2,065,559 (147,877)
Employees’ end of service benefits paid 23 (126,566) (496,424)
Net cash flows generated from/ (used in) operating activities 1,938,993 (644,301)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 8 (621,500) (399,295)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 526,838 34,000
Dividends received from an associate 11 - 153,000
Net cash flows used in investing activities (94,662) (212,295)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net movement in term loans (650,000) 300,003
Finance costs paid (865,625) (637,561)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest of subsidiaries (200,000) (120,000)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (1,715,625) (457,558)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 128,706 (1,314,154)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,376,523 2,690,677
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 19 1,505,229 1,376,523

The Group has the following non-cash transactions during the year which is not reflected
in the consolidated statement of cash flows:

Non-cash transactions:
Changes in fair value of financial assets held at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVOCI") 500,000 -
Transfer of revaluation surplus to retained earnings on disposal of right of

utilization 1,033,530 -
Revaluation of right of utilization 9 2,164,000 -

The accompanying notes on pages 9 to 51 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

AQ Middle East W.L.L. (the “Parent
Company”) was incorporated on 20 May
2002 as a Limited Liability Company in
the State of Kuwait. The Parent Company
changed its legal status to a Kuwaiti
Shareholding Company on 10 April 2006
and the Parent Company’s name was
changed to “Al Dorra Petroleum Services
Company K.S.C. (Closed)” on 8 August 2010.

The objectives for which the Parent
Company has been established are as
follows:

1. Carrying out all oil and civil works
required for oil sector.

2. Carrying out maintenance work and
various general services for all oil works
as follows:

Maintenance and repair of the oil
wells and improving their production -
electrical and mechanical maintenance
- maintenance of a sensitive and control
equipment - maintenance of coefficient
of acid gas - repair and paint oil tanks
- maintenance of ships docking sites
and locations and related worker -
maintenance of cooling rates in fields
and heavy equipment - maintenance
and services of polypropylene fertilizing
factories - gas liquidation and mixing
oils - any other plants belonging to oil
sector.

Supply and installation of a mobile

devices in oil sites to monitor and
measure air pollutants on a regular
basis - supply of technical manpower
specialized in the combating pollution
of marine environment surrounding
the oil sites - maintenance and safety
of oil facilities, pipelines and oil and gas
tankers, refineries, factories and related
annexes, supply and installation of safety
equipment and security systems, control
of oil ports (surveillance cameras — anti-
theft warning systems - fire fighting -
metal and explosives detectors, etc.).

. Intermediaries to do all other operations

required by other companies of various
business, interests and various purposes
in all major oil fields of the oil sector (after
the approval of the Ministry of Energy).

. Acquisition of movables and properties

necessary for the Parent Company to
practice its activities pursuant to the
limits prescribed by law.

. Utilizing the financial surpluses of the

Parent Company by investing them
in portfolios managed by specialized
companies and entities.

The Parent Company may practice the
aboveactivitiesinside the State of Kuwait
and abroad either in its own name or by
proxy. The Parent Company may have
interests or participate in any suitable
way with entities that engage in similar
business activities or that may help the
Parent Company achieve its objectives
inside Kuwait and abroad. The Parent
Companymayalsoincorporate, purchase
and/or participate in incorporation of
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such entities or affiliate them.

The registered office of the Parent
Company is P.O. Box 26583, Safat 13126,
Kuwait.

These consolidated financial statements
include the financial statements of the
Parent Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”)
(Note 5.2)

The consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 were authorized for
issue in accordance with a resolution
passed by the Parent Company’s Board of
Directorson4March2024 andare subject
to the approval of the shareholders’
Annual General Assembly Meeting. The
shareholders’ Annual General Assembly
Meeting has the power to amend these
consolidated financial statements after
issuance.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements
have been presented in Kuwaiti Dinars
(“KD") which is also the functional
currency of the Group. The consolidated
financial statements are prepared under
the historical cost convention except for
right of utilization and financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”) which are carried at their
fair value.

3. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements
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have been prepared in accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board
(“IFRS Accounting Standards”) and the
IFRS Accounting Standards interpretations
Committee applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS  Accounting
Standards and applicable requirements of
the Companies Law No. 1. of 2016 and its
Executive Regulations, as amended (the
“Companies Law").

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in compliance with adopted
IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the
Group’s management to exercise judgment
in applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas of material accounting
judgments and estimation uncertainty
made in preparing the consolidated
financial statements and their effect are
disclosed in Note 6.

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS™)

a) New standards, interpretations, and
amendments effective from 1 January 2023
The Group applied for the first-time certain
standards and amendments, which are
effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023 (unless otherwise
stated). The Group has not early adopted
any other standard, interpretation or
amendment that has been issued but is not
yet effective.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
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Statement 2 - Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement2MakingMaterialityJudgements
provide guidance and examples to help
entities apply materiality judgements
to accounting policy disclosures. The
amendments aim to help entities provide
accounting policy disclosures that are
more useful by replacing the requirement
for entities to disclose their ‘significant’
accounting policies with a requirement
to disclose their ‘material’ accounting
policies and adding guidance on how
entities apply the concept of materiality in
making decisions about accounting policy
disclosures.

The amendments had no material impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

a) New standards, interpretations,
and amendments effective from 1
January 2023

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts is a
comprehensive new accounting
standard for insurance contracts
covering recognition and
measurement, presentation and
disclosure. IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts. IFRS 17 applies
to all types of insurance contracts
(i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and
re-insurance), regardless of the type
of entities that issue them as well as
to certain guarantees and financial
instruments  with  discretionary
participation features; a few scope

exceptions will apply. The overall
objective of IFRS 17 is to provide a
comprehensive accounting model
for insurance contracts that is more
useful and consistent for insurers,
covering all relevant accounting
aspects. IFRS 17 is based on a general
model, supplemented by:

« A specific adaptation for contracts
with direct participation features (the
variable fee approach)

« A simplified approach (the premium
allocation approach) mainly for short-
duration contracts

The new standard had no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 8 - Definition
of Accounting Estimates

The amendments to IAS 8 clarify
the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates, changes in
accounting policiesand the correction
of errors. They also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting
estimates.

The amendments had no impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

There are other amendments related
to IAS 12 “Income Taxes” that have no
impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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b)

New standards, interpretations

and amendments not yet effective
There are a number of standards,
amendments to standards, and
interpretations which have been
issued by the IASB that are effective
in future accounting periods that the
Group has decided not to adopt early.

The following amendments are
effective for the period beginning 1
January 2024:

- Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
(Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases);

« ClassificationofLiabilitiesasCurrent
or Non-Current (Amendments to
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements);

« Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants  (Amendments  to
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements); and

« Supplier Finance Arrangements
(Amendments to IAS 7 Statement
of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures)

The following amendments are
effective for the period beginning 1
January 2025:

 Lack of Exchangeability
(Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects
of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates)

The Group is currently assessing the
impact of these new accounting
standards and amendments.
The Group does not believe that
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the amendments to IAS 1 will
have a significant impact on the
classification of its liabilities, as the
conversion feature in its convertible
debt instruments is classified as an
equity instrument and therefore,
does not affect the classification of
its convertible debt as a non-current
liability. The Group does not expect
any other standards issued by the
IASB, but are yet to be effective, to
have a material impact on the Group.

5.  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group presents assets and liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial
position based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended
to be sold or consumed in the normal
operating cycle;

« Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realized within twelve
month period after the reporting period;
or

« Cashorcashequivalentsunlessrestricted
from being exchanged or used to settle
a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

A liability is current when:

. Itis expected to be settled in the normal
operating cycle

« It is held primarily for the purpose of
trading
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« It is due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period

« There is no unconditional right to defer
the settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other assets and liabilities are classified
as non-current.

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Parent Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Parent
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Parent Company (a)
has power over the investee (b) is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and (c) has
the ability to use its power to affects its
returns.

De-facto control exists in situations where
the Parent Company has the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee without holding the majority
of the voting rights. In determining
whether de-facto control exists the Parent
Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances, including:

- The size of the Parent Company’s voting
rights relative to both the size and
dispersion of other parties who hold
voting rights.

- Substantive potential voting rights held
by the Parent Company and by other
parties.

Other contractual arrangements.
Historic patterns in voting attendance.

The Parent Company reassess whether
or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances  indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three
components of controls listed above.
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when
the Parent Company obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Parent
Company losses control over subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss or other
comprehensive income from the date
the Parent Company gains control until
the date when Parent Company ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit and loss and each component
of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Parent
Company and to the non-controlling
interest. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiary is attributed to the owners
of the Parent Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their ~ accounting policies into line
with the Group’s accounting policy.

All intra-group transactions, balances,

income and expenses are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Annual Report 2023



PETROLEUM SERVICES K.S.C. (CLOSED)
(laio) oy &pdgpinll L osall 5l

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted
for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including
goodwill), liabilities, non-controlling interest and other components of equity, while any
resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any investment retained is recognised
at fair value.

The subsidiaries of the Parent Company, all of which have been included in these
consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Ownership % Country of
2023 2022 incorporation

Name of the subsidiary Principal activities

Supply of equipment
99% 99% Kuwait and manufacture
and sale of gaskets.

Warba National Contracting Company
W.LL. (WNCQ)

Local agent for

Warba National Group Contracting suppliers and sale

Company W.L.L. (WNG) (Subsidiary of 99% 99% Kuwait
and manufacture of
WNCCQ) )
paint.
Gulf Safety Company W.L.L. (Subsidiary of Supply and
y-ompany ¥4t Y 99% | 99% Kuwait | installation of

WNCQ) . .
security equipment.

SITCO Middle East for Industrial Inspection - .
Industrial inspection

and Radiation Services Company W.L.L. 51% 51% Kuwait and radial services
(Subsidiary of GS) ’
0&G Eng.lneerlng General Trading and 98% 98% Kuwait General icradmg and
Contracting Company W.L.L., (O&G) contracting.

Manufacturi d
Cumberland Cathodic Protection Limited anufacturing an

(CCPL-England) 100% | 100% England supplying cathodic
products.

Cumberland Cathodic Protection Limited Manufacturing and

for Petroleum Services Company W.L.L. 99% 99% Kuwait supplying cathodic

(“CCPL"-Kuwait) products.

Kuwait Distributor for Chemical Products ) Supply of chemical

60% 60% K t

Company W.L.L. (“KDC") ° ° uwal products.

Warba Advanced Services & Business

Administration Industries Company W.L.L. 100% | 100% Kuwait Trading and Services.

(Subsidiary of WNCCQ)
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Warba International Company for Renting
and Leasing Scientific Commercial and
Industrial Machinery and Equipment W.L.L.
(Formerly known as “O&G For Renting and
Leasing Equipment of All Kinds Company
W.L.L")

99%

99%

Kuwait

General trading and
contracting.

Subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests:

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent Company

that have material non-controlling interests:

Pri?lrt’:rr:';;;‘ ﬁ:lqu;‘ ity Profit allocated to Accumulated
non-controllingy nqn-controlling nqn-controlling
Name of c°untry of interests at interests at interests at
subsidiary incorporation 31 December 31 December 31 December
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
KD KD KD KD
Kuwait Distributor
l‘;or Chemical Kuwait 40% 40%|  382,795| 306,289| 1,374,985 1,192,190
roducts Company
W.LL. (KDC)

The summarised financial information in respect of each subsidiary that has material non-
controlling interests before intra-group eliminations is presented below:

Kuwait Distributor for Chemical Products Company W.L.L.

Statement of financial position:
Non-current assets

Current assets

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Total equity

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income:

Revenue

Expenses

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

2023 2022

KD KD
723,715 580,737
2,688,293 2,247,456
(139,152) (125,317)
(199,698) (126,705)
3,073,158 2,576,171
4,898,239 3,150,869
(3,941,252) (2,385,146)
956,987 765,723
40,000 -
996,987 765,723
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Business combinations are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except deferred tax
assets or liabilities, liabilities or equity
instruments related to share based
payment arrangements and assets that are
classified as held for sale in which cases
they are accounted for in accordance with
the related IFRS Accounting Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the
sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the
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acquirer’'s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value or, when applicable,
on the basis specified in another IFRS
Accounting Standard.

When a business combinationisachievedin
stages, the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date (the date
when the Group obtains control) and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit
and loss. Amounts arising from interests
in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised
in the consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to the consolidated statement of profit
and loss where such treatment would be
appropriate if that interest were disposed
off.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost
(being the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling
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PETROLEUM SERVICES K.S.C. (
(laio) oy &pdgpinll L osall 5l



PETROLEUM SERVICES K.S.C. (CLOSED) )
(laio) el o &p)gpinll il osall 5yl

interests and any previous interest held
over the net identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed). If the fair value of
the net assets acquired is in excess of the
aggregate consideration transferred, the
Group re-assesses whether it has correctly
identified all of the assets acquired and all
of the liabilities assumed and reviews the
procedures used to measure the amounts
to be recognised at the acquisition date. If
the reassessment still results in an excess of
the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then
the gain is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to
those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a
cash-generating unit (CGU) and part of
the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the
disposed operation is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal.
Goodwill disposed in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative values of
the disposed operation and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

5.5 Property, plant and equipment

The initial cost of property, plant and
equipmentcomprisesits purchasepriceand
anydirectlyattributablecostsofbringingthe
asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditures incurred
after property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance and overhaul costs, are
normally charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year in
which the costs are incurred. In situations
where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditures have resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of
an item of property, plant and equipment
beyond its originally assessed standard
of performance, the expenditures are
capitalized as an additional cost of property,
plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (if any). When assets are
sold or retired, their cost and accumulated
depreciation are eliminated from the
accounts and any gain or loss resulting
from their disposal is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the year. The carrying values of property,
plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying
value may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists and where the carrying
values exceed the estimated recoverable
amount, the assets are written down to
their recoverable amount, being the higher
of their fair value less costs to sell and their
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value in use.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight
line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the property, plant and equipment are as
follows:

Buildings 20 years
Tools and heavy equipment 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-7 years
Office equipment 3-10 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-10 years

The useful life and depreciation method
are reviewed periodically to ensure that
the method and period of depreciation are
consistent with the expected pattern of
economic benefits from items of property,
plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset.

Workin progress for purposes of production
works or administrative usage are stated
at cost less any recognised impairment
loss. Cost includes professional fees and
borrowing costs capitalized on assets that
meet the conditions of capitalizing the
borrowing costs in accordance with the
Group’saccounting policy. These properties
are classified within the appropriate
categories of items of property, plant
and equipment when finished and being
considered ready for use. Depreciation of
such assets commences when they are
ready for use for their intended purpose in
the same way as other items of property,
plant and equipment.
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5.6 Right of utilization

Right of utilization (Leasehold land)
represents right of the Group for
exploitation of industrial block. Right

of utilization is considered as having an
indefinite useful life because of the normal
market trends that supports its continuous
renewal, and hence, it is not amortized.
Right of utilization is recognized initially at
cost. The revaluation of right of utilization
will be at the end of each reporting period
by independent valuers based on the
frequency criteria stated in IFRS Accounting
Standards.

Increases in the carrying amount arising
on revaluation of right of utilization are
credited to revaluation surplus in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Decreases that offset previous
increases of the same asset are charged
against revaluation surplus directly in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income; all other decreases are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year. When revalued right of
utilization is sold, the amounts included
in revaluation surplus are transferred to
retained earnings.

5.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are identified and recognised
separately from goodwill where they satisfy
the definition of an intangible asset and
their fair values can be measured reliably.
The cost of such intangible assets is their
fair value at the acquisition date.
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Subsequent to initial  recognition,
intangible assets are reported as follows:

Agency agreements
Agency agreements are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The management of the Group believes
that agency agreements have an indefinite
useful life on the basis that these intangible
assets represent legal rights that are
renewable and that there is pervasive
evidence that the renewal is virtually
certain. Also, management expects that
these assets will contribute cash flows on
an ongoing basis. Intangible assets with
an indefinite useful life are not amortised.
The estimated useful life is reviewed at the
end of each annual reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset are measured as
the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the
assetandarerecognisedintheconsolidated
statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Costs relating to the applications and
websites are capitalised and amortised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives.

5.8 Investmentin an associate

An associate is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence that is
neithera subsidiary noraninterestin ajoint
venture. Significant influence is the power

to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of
the associate are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting, except
when the investment is classified as held
for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statementoffinancial position
at costand adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group'’s share of the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income
attributable to equity holders of the
associate. When the Group's share of losses
of an associate exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate, the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the associate recognised at the
dateofacquisitionisrecognisedasgoodwill,
which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of
the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of profit or
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loss.

The Group determines at each reporting
date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with “IAS 36
Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to
sell) with its carrying amount.

Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group transacts with its
associate, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

The associate’s financial statements are
prepared either to the Group’s financial
position date or to a date not earlier than
three months of the Group’s consolidated
financial position date. Amounts reported
in the financial statements of associates
have been adjusted where necessary to
ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group. Where
practicable, adjustments are made for the
effect of significant transactions or other
events that occurred between the financial
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position date of the associates and the
Group’s financial position date.

5.9 Investmentin a joint venture

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement
when there is a contractual arrangement
that confers joint control over the relevant
activities of the arrangement to the Group
and at least one other party. Joint control

is assessed under the same principles as
control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint

arrangements as either:

- Joint ventures: where the Group has
rights to only the net assets of the joint
arrangement; and

- Joint operations: where the Group has
both the rights to assets and obligations
fortheliabilities of the jointarrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in

joint arrangements, the Group considers:

- The structure of the joint arrangement;

- The legal form of joint arrangements
structured through a separate vehicle;

- The contractual terms of the joint
arrangement  agreement;  and

- Any other facts and circumstances
(including any other contractual
arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in
joint ventures in the same manner as
investments in associates using the equity
method.

AL DORRA
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Any premium paid for an investment in a
joint venture above the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the investment in a joint
venture. Where there is objective evidence
that the investment in a joint venture has
been impaired the carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in the
same way as other non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests joint
operations by recognising its share of
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in
accordance with its contractually conferred
rights and obligations.

5.10 Impairment of non-financial
assets

Ateach consolidatedfinancial positiondate,
the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its non-financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, group
assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable

and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or
cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairmentloss is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

5.11 Financial instruments

The Group classifiesits financialinstruments
as financial assets and financial liabilities.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognized when the Group becomes a
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party of the contractual provisions of such
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities
carried on the consolidated statement of
financial position include financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”), work in progress, trade
andotherreceivables (excludingadvanceto
suppliers and subcontractors, and prepaid
expenses), contract assets, due from
related parties, cash and cash equivalents,
term loans, due to related parties, trade
and other payables (excluding advances
from customers) and bank overdrafts.

Recognition, initial measurement and

derecognition

To determine their classification and
measurement category, IFRS 9 requires all
financial assets, except equity instruments
and derivatives, to be assessed based on
a combination of the entity's business
model for managing the assets and

the instruments’ contractual cash flow
characteristics.
The Group determines its business

model at the level that best reflects how
it manages groups of financial assets to
achieve its business objectives and in
order to generate contractual cash flows.
That is, whether the Group’s objective
is solely to collect the contractual cash
flows from the assets or is to collect both
the contractual cash flows and cash flows
arising from the sale of assets. If neither
of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets
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are held for trading purposes), then the
financial assets are classified as part of ‘Sell’
business model and measured at FVPL. The
Group's business model is not assessed on
an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at
a higher level of aggregated portfolios.

Purchases and sales of those financial assets
are recognized on trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs.

Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component are
measured at the transaction price.

A financial asset is derecognized either
when: the contractual rights to receive
the cash flows from the financial asset
have expired; or the Group has transferred
its rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the
financial asset, but has transferred control
of the financial asset. Where the Group
has retained control, it shall continue to
recognize the financial asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement in the
financial asset.

Classification of financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets
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upon initial recognition into the following
categories:
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
Financial assets at amortized cost.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI™)

Upon initial recognition, the Group
may elect to classify irrevocably some
of its equity instruments at FVOCI when
they are neither held for trading nor a
contingent consideration arising from a
business combination. Such classification
is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument  basis.

Financial assets at FVOCI are subsequently
measured atfairvalue.Changesinfairvalues
including foreign exchange component
are recognized in the consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income
and presented in the fair value reserves as
part of equity. Cumulative gains and losses
previously recognized in the consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income
are transferred to retained earnings on
derecognition.

Gainsandlossesontheseequityinstruments
are never recycled to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the right of the
payment has been established, except
when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of

the instrument, in which case, such gains
are recorded in OCI.

Financial assets at FVOCI are not subject to
an impairment assessment. Upon disposal,
cumulative gains or losses are reclassified
from fair value reserve of financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”) to retained earnings in
the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

The Group classifies investments in
unquoted equity investment under
financial assets at FVOClin the consolidated
statement of financial position.
Financial assets at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised

cost if it meets both of the following

conditions and is not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss:

- Itis held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual  cash flows; and

- Its contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost
are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate
method adjusted for impairment losses if
any. Gains and losses are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognized, modified
or impaired.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

consist of work in progress, trade and other
receivables (excluding advance to suppliers
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and subcontractors, and prepaid expenses),
contract assets, due from related parties
and cash and cash equivalents.

Effective interest rate method (“EIR”)
The EIR method is a method of calculating
the amortized cost of a financial asset and
of allocating profit over the relevant period.
The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold in the ordinary
course of business and recognized initially
at transaction price. The Group holds the
trade receivables with the objective of
collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment.

Receivables which are not designated
under any of the above are classified as
“other receivables”.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of
cash on hand and at banks and short term
deposits having an original maturity of less
than three months from the placement
date. Cash at banks and short term
deposits are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

Derecognition

A financial asset (in whole or in part) is
derecognized either when: the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows from the
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financial asset have expired; or the Group
has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the financial asset and either (a)
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the
financial asset, but has transferred control
of the financial asset. Where the Group
has retained control, it shall continue to
recognize the financial asset to the extent
of its continuing involvement in the
financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes an allowance for
expected credit losses (ECL) for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss.

ECLs are based on the difference between
thecontractualcashflowsdueinaccordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation to
the asset’s original effective interest rate.
The excepted cash flows will include cash
flows that are integral to the contractual
terms.

For trade and other receivables (excluding
advance to suppliers and subcontractors,
and prepaid expenses) with no significant
financing component, the Group has
applied the standard’s simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime
expected credit losses. Accordingly, the
Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognizes a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date.
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For due from related parties, the Group
has applied a forward-looking approach
wherein recognition of credit losses is
no longer dependent on the Group first
identifying a credit loss event. Instead,
the Group considers a broader range of
information when assessing credit risk and
measuring expected credit losses, including
past events, current conditions, reasonable
and supportable forecasts that affect the
expected collectability of the future cash
flows of the instrument.

The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
Exposures were segmented based on
common credit characteristics such as
credit risk grade, geographic region and
industry, delinquency status and age of
relationship where applicable.

Measurement of the expected credit losses
is determined by a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses over the expected
life of the financial instrument. ECLs for
financial assets measured at amortized
cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets and charged to
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

All financial liabilities within IFRS 9 are
recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. All financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost
using effective interest rate method.

The Group’s financial liabilities include
term loans, due to related parties, trade
and other payables (excluding advances
from customers) and bank overdrafts.

Term loans and bank overdraft

After initial recognition, interest-bearing
term loans and bank overdraft are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Accounts payable

Accounts payable include trade and other
payables. Accounts payable are obligations
to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable
are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method.
Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less. If not, they are presented as non -
current liabilities.

Derecognition

Afinancialliabilityisderecognized whenthe
obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires. When an existing
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financial liability isreplaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference
in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. If the modification is not
substantial, the difference between: (1) the
carrying amount of the liability before the
modification; and (2) the present value of
the cash flows after modification should be
recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as the modification gain or
loss within other gains and losses.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount reported in the
consolidated statementof financial position
if, and onlyif, thereisa currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

5.12 Coniract assets / contract
liabilities

A contract assetis the right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services
transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognized for the earned
consideration that is conditional.

Contract assets is assessed for impairment

Annual Report 2023

underthesimplifiedapproachinaccordance
with IFRS 9: Financial Instruments.

A contract liability arises if a customer pays
consideration, or if the Group has a right
to consideration that is unconditional,
before the good or service is transferred
to the customer. Contract liabilities are
recognized as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.

5.13 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost
and net realizable value after providing
allowancesforany obsolete or slow-moving
items. Costs comprise direct materials and
where applicable, direct labor costs and
those overheads that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined
on a weighted average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business
less the costs of completion and selling
expenses. Write-down is made for obsolete
and slow-moving items based on their
expected future use and net realizable
value.

5.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new shares are shown in equity
as a deduction from the proceeds.
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5.15 Employees’ end of service
benefits

The Group provides end of service benefits
to its employees. The entitlement to these
benefits are based upon the employees’
final salary and length of service subject
to the completion of a minimum service
period in accordance with Kuwait labour
law and the employees’ contracts. The
expected costs of these benefits are
accrued over the period of employment.
This liability, which is unfunded, represents
the amount payable to each employee as a
result of termination on the reporting date.

Further, with respect to its national
employees, the Group also makes
contributions to public institutions for
social security calculated as a percentage
of the employees’ salaries. The Group’s
obligations are limited to these
contributions, which are expensed when
due.

5.16 Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Group
hasapresentlegalorconstructiveobligation
as a result of a past event and it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimate. Where the effect
of the time value of money is material,
the amount of a provision is the present
value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions

are not recognized for future operating
losses.

5.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the
consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in a contract with a customer
and excludes amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. The Group recognises
revenue when it transfers control of a
product or service to a customer.

The Group applies a five-step model are as

follows to account for revenue arising from

contracts:
Step 1: Identify the contract with the
customer — A contract is defined as an
agreement between two or more parties
that creates enforceable rights and
obligations and sets out the criteria for
every contract that must be met.
Step 2: Identify the performance
obligations in the «contract - A
performance obligation is a promise in
a contract with the customer to transfer
goods or services to the customer.
Step 3: Determine the transaction price
— The transaction price is the amount
of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange of
transferring promised good or services
to a customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price
to the performance obligations in the
contracts — For a contract that has more
than one performance obligation, the
Group will allocate the transaction
price to each performance obligation
in an amount that depicts the amount
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of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for
satisfying each performance obligation.
Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or
as) the entity satisfies a performance
obligation.

Revenue is recognized when control of
the goods or services are transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. The Group has
generally concluded that it is the principal
in its revenue arrangements, because it
typically controls the goods or services
before transferring them to the customer.
The Group exercises judgement, taking
into consideration all of the relevant facts
and circumstances when applying each
step of the model to contracts with their
customers.

The Group recognizes revenue either at a
point in time or over time, when (or as) the
Group satisfies performance obligations
by transferring the promised goods or
services to its customers. The Group
transfers control of a good or service over
time (rather than at a point in time) when
any of the following criteria are met:
The customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group
performs.
The Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (e.g., work in process)
that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced.
The performance does not create an
assetwithan alternative use to the Group
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and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed
to date.

Control is transferred at a point in time if
none of the criteria for a good or service
to be transferred over time are met. The
Group considers the following factors in
determining whether control of an asset
has been transferred:

The Group hasapresentrightto payment

for the service.

The customer has legal title to the

service.

The Group has transferred physical

possession of the service.

The customer has the significant risks

and rewards of ownership of the service.

The customer has accepted the service.

The Group recognizes contract liabilities
for consideration received in respect of
unsatisfied performance obligations in
the consolidated statement of financial
position. Similarly, if the Group satisfies a
performance obligation before it receives
the consideration, the Group recognizes
either a contract asset or a receivable in
its consolidated statement of financial
position, depending on whether something
other than the passage of time is required
before the consideration is due.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
with a customer are capitalized when
incurred as the Group expects to recover
these costs and such costs would not
have incurred if the contract has not been
obtained. Sales commission incurred by
the Group is expensed as the amortization
period of such costs is less than a year.
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Revenue for the Group arises from the
following activities:

Contract revenue

Revenue from construction contracts is
recognized over time on a cost-to-cost
method (input method), i.e. based on the
proportion of contract costs incurred for
work performed to date relative to the
estimated total contract costs. Profit is only
recognized when the contract reaches
a point where the ultimate profit can be
estimated withreasonable certainty.Claims,
variation orders and incentive payments
are included in the determination of
contract profit when approved by contract
owners. Anticipated losses on contracts are
recognized in full as soon as they become
apparent.

If the outcome of a construction contract
could be estimated reliably, then contract
revenue was recognized in proportion to
the stage of completion of the contract.
The stage of completion was assessed
with reference to surveys of work
performed. Otherwise, contract revenue
was recognized only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that were likely to
be recoverable. Contract expenses were
recognized as they were incurred. An
expected loss on a contract was recognized
immediately in consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Rendering of services
Revenue from service contracts is
recognized when the service is rendered.

Sale of goods

Sales represent the total invoiced value of
goods sold during the year. Revenue from
sale of goods is recognized when or as the
Group transfers control of the goods to
the customer. For standalone sales, that
are neither customized by the Group nor
subject to significant integration services,
control transfers at the point in time when
the customer takes undisputed delivery of
the goods.

Other income
Other income is recognized on an accrual
basis.

5.18 Finance costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.
All other borrowing costs are recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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5.19 Foreign currencies

Foreign currencytransactionsaretranslated
into Kuwaiti Dinars at rates of exchange
prevailing on the date of the transactions.
Monetaryassetsand liabilitiesdenominated
in foreign currency at the end of reporting
year are retranslated into Kuwaiti Dinars
at rates of exchange prevailing on that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical costin a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are
included in consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year. Translation
differences on non-monetary items such
as equity investments which are classified
as financial assets at fair value through
income are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary items such as equity
investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”) are included in “fair value
reserve of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income”
in the consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income.

The assets and liabilities of the foreign
subsidiary are translated into Kuwaiti
Dinars at rates of exchange prevailing at the
end of reporting period. The results of the
subsidiary are translated into Kuwaiti Dinars
at rates approximating the exchange rates
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prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange differences arising
on translation are recognized directly
in other comprehensive income. Such
translation differences are recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
in the year in which the foreign operation
is disposed of.

5.20 Taxation

Contribution to Kuwait Foundation for
the Advancement of Sciences (“KFAS”)
The Group is legally required to contribute
to the Kuwait Foundation for the
Advancement of Sciences (“KFAS”). The
Group's contribution to KFAS is recognised
as an expense in the period during which
the Group's contribution is legally required.
KFAS is imposed at 1% of profit of the
Group, less permitted deductions.

Zakat

Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit before
contribution to KFAS, Zakat, and Board of
Directors’ remuneration and cash dividends
received from Kuwaiti shareholding
companies in accordance with Law No. 46
of 2006 and Ministerial resolution No. 58 of
2007 and their Executive Regulations.
5.21 Contingent assets and contingent
liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognized in
the consolidated financial statements but
disclosed when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial
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position, but are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote.

6. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The Group makes judgments, estimates
and  assumptions  concerning  the
future. The preparation of consolidated
financial statements in conformity with
IFRS Accounting Standards requires
management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during
the year. Actual results could differ from
the estimates.

Material accounting judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies, management has
made the following significant judgments,
which have the most significant effect on
theamountsrecognizedinthe consolidated
financial statements:

Useful lives of non-financial assets

The Group reviews the estimated useful
lives over which its non-financial assets are
depreciated. The Group’s management is
satisfied that the estimates of useful lives
are appropriate.

Operating lease commitments - The
Group as lessor
The Group has entered into commercial

property leases with third parties. The
Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions
of the arrangements, such as the lease
term not constituting a major part of the
economic life of the property and the fair
value of the asset that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership
of leased out properties. Accordingly, the
Group accounts for such lease contracts as
operating leases.

Classification of financial instruments

On acquisition of a financial asset, the
Group decides whether it should be
classified as “at fair value through profit
or loss”, “at fair value through other
comprehensive income” or “at amortised
cost”. IFRS 9 requires all financial assets,
except equity instruments and derivatives,
to be assessed based on a combination of
the Group’s business model for managing
the assets of the instrument’s contractual
cash flow characteristics. The Group follows
the guidance of IFRS 9 on classifying its
financial assets and is explained in Note 5.

Fair value of unquoted equity securities
If the market forafinancial assetis notactive
or not available, the Group establishes fair
value by using valuation techniques which
include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, referenceto otherinstruments
that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis adjusted net assets, and
option pricing models refined to reflect
the issuer’s specific circumstances. This
valuation requires the Group to make
estimates about expected future cash
flows and discount rates that are subject to
uncertainty.
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Principal versus agent considerations
The Group enters into contracts to sell
goods or render services to its customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The
Group determined that it is a principal in all
its contracts with its customers. The Group
controls the promised goods or services
before the Group transfers the goods and
services to the customer.

The Group satisfles the performance
obligations by itself and does not engage
another party in satisfying its performance
obligations in its contracts with customers.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is
probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue can be
reliably measured. The determination of
whether the revenue recognition criteria
as specified under IFRS 15 and revenue
accounting policy explained in Note 5 are
met requires significant judgment.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the
future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at consolidated financial
position date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next year are discussed below:

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group reviews tangible assets on a
continuous basis to determine whether
a provision for impairment should be
recorded in the consolidated statement
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of profit or loss. In particular, considerable
judgement by management is required in
the estimation of the amount and timing
of future cash flows when determining the
level of provisions required.

Impairment of investment in an
associate

After application of the equity method, the
Group determines whether it is necessary
to recognise any impairment loss on the
Group's investment in its associate, at each
reporting date based on existence of any
objective evidence that the investment
in the associate is impaired. If this is the
case the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the
amountas “impairment of investmentin an
associate” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Fair value measurement and valuation
techniques

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities
are measured at fair value for financial
reporting  purposes. The  Group’s
management determines the appropriate
valuation techniquesandinputforfairvalue
measurement. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the management
uses market observable data to the extent
it is available. In case no market observable
data are available, the Group shall assign
an external qualified valuer to carry out the
valuation process.

Impairment of inventories
Inventories are held at the lower of cost
and net realizable value. When inventories
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become old or obsolete, an estimate is made of their net realizable value. For individually
significant amounts, this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amount which
are not individually significant, but which are old or obsolete, are assessed collectively
and a provision applied according to the inventory type and the degree of ageing or
obsolescence, based on historical selling prices.

At the consolidated financial position date, gross inventories amounted to KD 2,766,912
(2022: KD 3,511,831), with provision for moving inventories of KD 261,489 (2022: KD
512,982). Any difference between the amounts actually realised in the future period and
the amount expected will be recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract
assets. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, services type,
customer and type). The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates.

The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with
forward-looking information.

For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product, inflation) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast
economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive
to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical
credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative
of customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECL on the Group’s
trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in Note 30.2.

Long term contracts

Revenue from long term contracts is recognized in accordance with the cost-to-cost
method (“input method”) measured by reference to the percentage that actual costs
incurred to date bear to total estimated costs for each contract. The revenue recognition as
per the above criteria should correspond to the actual work completed. The determination
of estimated costs and the application of the input method involve estimation. Further,
the budgeted cost and revenue should consider the claims and variations pertaining to
each contract.
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7. GOODWILL

The Group’s Goodwill is recognized for three cash generating units which represents O&G
Engineering General Trading and Contracting Company W.L.L. amounting to KD 196,765,
Kuwaiti Distributor Company for Chemical Materials W.L.L. amounting to KD 499,949 and
Warba National Contracting Company W.L.L. amounting to KD 2,976,516.

At 31 December 2023, the Group assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill and
determined that there was no impairment in the value of goodwill. The recoverable

amount was assessed by reference to the CGUs value in use.

2023 2022
KD KD
O&G Engineering General Trading and Contracting Company W.L.L. 196,765 196,765
Kuwaiti Distributor Company for Chemical Materials W.L.L. 499,949 499,949
Warba National Contracting Company W.L.L. 2,976,516 2,976,516
3,673,230 3,673,230
The movement in goodwill during the year is as follows:
2023 2022
KD KD
At 1 January 3,673,230 3,829,409
Impairment - (156,179)
At 31 December 3,673,230 3,673,230
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Depreciation charges are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss under
the following categories:

2023 2022
KD KD
Operating costs 136,075 160,569
General and administrative expenses (Note 28) 146,527 123,742
282,602 284,311
9. RIGHT OF UTILIZATION
2023 2022
KD KD
Gross carrying amount:
At 1 January 4,641,000 4,641,000
Revaluation surplus 2,164,000 -
At 31 December 6,805,000 4,641,000

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The intangible assets represent agency agreements with indefinite life carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. As at 31 December, management of the Group
believes that there are no indications of impairment as the carrying amount of the agency
agreements approximate their recoverable amounts.

11. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Name of the Country of Principal Equity interest Carrying value
associate incorporation activity 2023 2022 2023 2022
International

Warba

Coatings Paint Manufacturing

Manufacturing and sale of

Company W.L.L. Kuwait paints 51% 51% 275,964 354,580

The movement in the carrying value of the associate is as follows:
As at 31 December

2023 2022
KD KD
At 1 January 354,580 601,882
Share of results (78,616) (94,302)
Dividends received - (153,000)
At 31 December 275,964 354,580

The Group has 51% interestin International Warba Coatings Paint Manufacturing Company
W.L.L. (the “associate”), which is engaged in the manufacturing and sale of paints. The legal
status of the associate is a limited liability company incorporated in the State of Kuwait.
The Group determined to account for its interest in the associate using the equity method
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as it has no control over this investee and only has significant influence. Accordingly, the
investee is classified as an associate.

The associate’s financial statements are prepared at the same reporting
date of the Group. The associate requires the Partners’ consent to
distribute its profits and Partners do not foresee giving such consent at
31 December 2023. The associate had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as
at 31 December. The Group calculated its share of associate results based on management
accounts as at 31 December 2023.

The tables below provide summarized financial information of the associate (and not the
Group's share of those amounts):

2023 2022
Statement of financial position: KD KD
As at 31 December
Non-current assets 361,746 190,242
Current assets 967,404 1,293,250
Non-current liabilities (314,326) (156,530)
Current liabilities (389,238) (547,227)
Net assets 625,586 779,735
Statement of profit or loss:
For the year ended 31 December
Revenue 1,487,020 1,567,245
Expenses (1,641,169) (1,752,151)
Net loss for the year (154,149) (184,906)

Reconciliation of the above summarized financial information to the carrying amount
of investment in an associate recognized in the consolidated financial statements is as
follows:

2023 2022
KD KD
Net assets of the associate 625,586 779,735
Downstream transaction (84,480) (84,480)
Adjusted net assets of the associate 541,106 695,255
Percentage of ownership 51% 51%
Carrying amount as at 31 December 275,964 354,580

12. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

The Group has 51% interest in Basin Supply Company W.L.L. (the “Joint Venture”), which
is engaged in transportation services. The legal status of the joint venture is a limited
liability company incorporated in the State of Kuwait. The Group determined to account
for its interest in the joint venture using the equity method as it has no control over this
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investee. Accordingly, the investee is classified as a joint venture.

The movement in the carrying value of the investment in a joint venture is as follows:

2023 2022
KD KD
Statement of financial position:
At 1 January 21,920 22,674
Share of results for the year - (754)
Impairment during the year (21,920) -
At 31 December - 21,920

13. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(“FVOCI”)
2023 2022
KD KD
Investment in an unquoted security 1,012,647 1,512,647

Movement in financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income during
the year is as follows:

2023 2022
KD KD
At 1 January 1,512,647 1,512,647
Change in fair value for the year (500,000) -
At 31 December 1,012,647 1,512,647

Valuation techniques of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) are disclosed in Note 31.

14. INVENTORIES

2023 2022
KD KD
Finished goods 1,792,299 1,311,722
Raw materials 974,613 2,200,109
2,766,912 3,511,831
Less: provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories (261,489) (512,982)
2,505,423 2,998,849
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The movement in the provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories during the year
is as follows:

2023 2022
KD KD
At 1 January 512,982 466,061
Charged for the year 50,782 46,921
Utilized during the year* (302,275) -
At 31 December 261,489 512,982

*During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group utilized the provision related to
inventories amounted to KD 302,275 based on management’s approval.

15. WORK IN PROGRESS

Work in progress represents various direct and indirect costs incurred with respect to the
completion of the projects, but not completed as at the year end.

2023 2022
KD KD
Work in progress — gross 7,986,092 7,663,474
Less: provision for expected credit losses (978,739) (821,506)
7,007,353 6,841,968

The movement in the provision for expected credit losses for work in progress during the
year is as follows:

2023 2022
KD KD
At 1 January 821,506 -
Charge for the year 157,233 821,506
At 31 December 978,739 821,506

Disclosures relating to the credit risk exposures and analysis relating to the provision for
expected credit losses are set forth in Note 30.2.
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16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: provision for expected credit losses

Advance to suppliers and subcontractors
Less: provision for expected credit losses

Prepaid expenses

Commission receivable

Staff receivables

Retention receivables

Refundable deposits

Others

Less: provision for expected credit losses

PETROLEUM SERVICES K.S.C. (CLOSED)
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2023 2022
KD KD

6,752,643 5,834,780
(651,701) (608,570)
6,100,942 5,226,210
3,427,537 3,168,651
(294,011) (294,011)
3,133,526 2,874,640
107,370 117,260
209,317 209,317
95,620 96,647
1,389,669 1,388,195
53,055 49,860
2,297,239 2,045,219
(1,544,233) (1,490,319
2,608,037 2,416,179
11,842,505 10,517,029

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally due within 180 days.

The movement in the provision for expected credit losses for trade and other receivables

during the year is as follows:

At 1 January
Charge for the year
At 31 December

2023 2022
KD KD
2,392,900 1,600,056
97,045 792,844
2,489,945 2,392,900

Disclosures relating to the credit risk exposures and analysis relating to the provision for

expected credit losses are set forth in Note 30.2.

17. CONTRACT ASSETS

Contract costs incurred plus recognized profits less recognized

losses to date
Less: progress billing

Less: provision for expected credit losses
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2023 2022
KD KD
72,385,849 81,579,445
(67,606,234) (76,722,868)
4,779,615 4,856,577
(1,116,784) (1,062,385)
3,662,831 3,794,192
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The movement in the provision for expected credit losses for contract assets during the

year is as follows:

At 1 January
Charge for the year
At 31 December

2023 2022
KD KD
1,062,385 677,649
54,399 384,736
1,116,784 1,062,385

18. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS

Related parties consist of major shareholders, directors and the executive officers of the
Group, their families and entities controlled or significantly influenced by such parties.
All related party transactions approximate arm'’s length terms and are approved by
the Group’s management. Related party balances and transactions included in the

consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Consolidated statement of financial position
Due from related parties:
Samcrete Engineers and Contractors - S.A.E.

International Warba Coatings Paint Manufacturing
Company W.LL.

Penta Global Engineering Company L.L.C.

Less: provision for expected credit losses

Due to related parties:
Penta Global Engineering Company L.L.C.
Other related parties

Consolidated statement of profit or loss
Rentincome

Key management personnel compensation
Salaries and other short-term benefits
Termination benefits

Entities under

common control 2023 2022
KD KD KD

1,495,592 1,495,592 1,514,524
- - 3,497
128,652 128,652 128,652
1,624,244 1,624,244 1,646,673
(356,074) (356,074) (356,074)
1,268,170 1,268,170 1,290,599

60,651 60,651 46,153

2,654 2,654 19,698

63,305 63,305 65,851

120,000 84,480

291,849 266,847

15,513 14,427

307,362 281,274

The movement in the provision for expected credit losses for contract assets during the

year is as follows:
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2023 2022

KD KD
At 1 January 356,074 373,870
No longer required - (17,796)
At 31 December 356,074 356,074

During 2012, the Group entered a Joint Venture agreement with Samcrete Engineers and
Contractors — S.A.E (“JV partner”) to complete a Contract of Construction, Completion
and Maintenance Works, Service City Center, Sabah Al-Ahmad City Housing Project
897/2011/2012 by Public Authority for Housing welfare (“the project”) and during 2013
the JV partner withdrew from the completion of the project and the Group completed the
project. Currently, the Group filed a legal case against the JV partner with an amount of
KD 2,032,850. The Group won the legal case and in the process of executing and collecting
the amount.

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2023 2022
KD KD

Short term deposits* 802,930 1,200,000
Bank balances 1,361,653 556,795
Cash on hand 11,567 11,783
Cash and cash equivalents 2,176,150 1,768,578
Less: bank overdrafts (Note 26) (670,921) (392,055)
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated

statement of cash flows 1,505,229 1,376,523

*The effective interest rate on short term deposits ranges from 3.75% to 4% (2022: 3.25%
to 4%) per annum.

20. SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2023, the Parent Company’s authorized, issued and paid up share
capital comprises of 26,384,194 shares (2022: 26,384,194 shares) of 100 fils each and all
shares are paid in cash.

21. STATUTORY RESERVE

As required by Companies Law and the Parent Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of
the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company after deducting
accumulated losses and before contribution to Kuwait Foundation for Advancement of
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Sciences, Zakat and Board of Directors’ remuneration is transferred to statutory reserve.
Such transfers may be discontinued when the reserve exceeds 50% of share capital. No
transfer to statutory reserve was made as the Group has accumulated losses as at 31
December.

22. VOLUNTARY RESERVE

As required by the Parent Company’s Articles of Association, 10% of profit for the year
attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company after deducting accumulated losses
and before contribution to Kuwait Foundation for Advancement of Sciences, Zakat
and Board of Directors’ remuneration is transferred to voluntary reserve. No transfer to
voluntary reserve was made as the Group has accumulated losses as at 31 December.

23. EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

2023 2022
KD KD
At 1 January 972,285 1,260,203
Charge for the year 172,210 212,775
Provision no longer required for the year (3,595) (4,269)
Paid during the year (126,566) (496,424)
At 31 December 1,014,334 972,285
24. TERM LOANS
2023 2022
KD KD
Non-current portion
Due to local banks by the Parent Company 1,845,000 2,195,000
Due to local banks related to subsidiaries 9,443,000 10,193,000
11,288,000 12,388,000
Current portion
Due to local banks by the Parent Company 525,000 350,000
Due to local banks related to subsidiaries 900,000 625,000
1,425,000 975,000

Term loans represent loans denominated in Kuwaiti Dinars obtained from local banks
against corporate guarantee provided by the Parent Company and carry effective interest
rate of 2.25% to 3.5% per annum as at 31 December 2023 (2022: 2.25% to 3.5% per annum)
over the Central Bank of Kuwait discount rate.
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables

Advances from customers

Accrued project expenses

Accrued staff bonus

Retention payable

Refundable deposits

Accrued staff leave salary

Zakat payable

Accrued expenses and other payables

26. BANK OVERDRAFTS

(alaiio) oy &algpinll ol gyal
2023 2022
KD KD

3,134,876 2,705,416
379,109 464,472
190,874 58,926
197,715 38,250
232,244 319,330
222,885 222,885
244,907 221,114
21,500 -
1,872,240 1,809,971
6,496,350 5,840,364

The Group has obtained overdraft facilities from local banks denominated in Kuwaiti
Dinars (Note 19). These facilities carry an effective interest rate of 2.5% per annum as at
31 December 2023 (2022: 2.5% per annum) over the Central Bank of Kuwait discount rate.
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27. OPERATING REVENUES

Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s operating revenues:

Annual Report 2023

2023 2022
KD KD
Revenue Type
Material supply 370,538 131,422
Supply and installation 846,554 1,014,160
Inspection services 10,223 23,776
Trading 10,623,723 7,800,934
Service 442,490 328,251
Fabrication 992,066 1,157,474
Revenue from maintenance services 1,650,321 3,250,018
Total revenue from contracts with customers 14,935,915 13,706,035
Timing of revenue recognition
2023 2022
KD KD
At a point in time 11,478,371 11,610,646
Over time 3,457,544 2,095,389
Total revenue from contracts with customers 14,935,915 13,706,035
Geographical markets
Revenue from external customers 349,441 114,338
Revenue from local customers 14,586,474 13,591,697
Total revenue from contracts with customers 14,935,915 13,706,035
Type of customer
Government customers 11,339,206 10,544,893
Non-government customers 3,596,709 3,161,142
Total revenue from contracts with customers 14,935,915 13,706,035
Contract duration
Short-term 6,743,261 5,601,445
Long-term contracts 8,192,654 8,104,590
Total revenue from contracts with customers 14,935,915 13,706,035
Contract balances
2023 2022
KD KD
Work in progress 7,007,353 6,841,968
Trade receivables — net (Note 16) 6,100,942 5,226,210
Retention receivables — net (Note 16) 1,389,669 1,388,195
Contract assets — net 3,662,831 3,794,192
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Contract liabilities
Advances from customers (Note 25) 379,109 464,472
Retention payable (Note 25) 232,244 319,330
28. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2023 2022
KD KD
Staff costs 1,449,630 1,289,827
Depreciation (Note 8) 146,527 123,742
Selling and distribution expenses 13,512 9,674
Rent 65,717 57,509
Other expenses 442,839 372,480
2,118,225 1,853,232
29. OTHER INCOME
2023 2022
KD KD
Commission income 52,039 46,213
Rent income 129,000 93,480
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 198,918 34,000
Other miscellaneous income 553,614 451,206
933,571 624,899

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to variety of financial risks: e.g. market risk (i.e. interest rate
risk, foreign currency risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
management policies for reducing each of the risks are mentioned below. The Group does
not use derivative financial instruments based on future speculations.

30.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of interest rate risk,
foreign currency risk and equity price risk.

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. Financial instruments, which potentially subject the
Group to interest rate risk, consist primarily of term loans and bank overdrafts. The Group
has no other interest rate bearing financial assets and financial liabilities. The Group is not
exposed to interest rate risk on its short term deposits since they carry fixed interest rates.
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and equity for the year ended 31 December to reasonably possible changes in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant. The sensitivity of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the Group'’s profit
/ (loss) for the year and equity.

Increase in Effect on profit for the
2023 basis points year and equity
KD KD
Term loans 12,713,000 50 63,565
Bank overdrafts 670,921 50 3,355
Increase in Effect on loss for the
2022 basis points year and equity
KD KD
Term loans 13,363,000 50 66,815
Bank overdrafts 392,055 50 1,960

The effect of decrease in basis points is expected to be equal and opposite to the effect of
the increases shown above.

b) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in the foreign exchange rate. The Group bears foreign currency risk on
transactions that are denominated in a currency other than the Kuwaiti Dinars. The Group
may reduce its exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates through the use of
derivative financial instruments. The Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an
acceptable level, by dealing in currencies that do not fluctuate significantly against the
Kuwaiti Dinars.

The Group had the following material net exposures denominated in foreign currencies:

Net assets / (liabilities)

2023 2022
KD KD

(Equivalent) (Equivalent)
SAR 1,012,647 1,512,647
US Dollars 60,198 (66,187)
Euro (229,234) (289,726)
Japanese Yen 647,401 136,512
GBP (1,773) (3,490)
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The table below indicates the Group’s foreign exchange exposure as at 31 December, as a
result of its financial assets and liabilities. The analysis calculates the effect of a reasonably
possible movement of the KD currency rate against the foreign currencies, with all other
variables held constant, on the profit / (loss) for the year and equity (due to the fair value
of currency sensitive financial assets and financial liabilities).

Effect on consolidated

Changes in profit/ (loss) for the year
currency rate % and equity
Net assets / (liabilities)
2023 2022
KD KD

SAR +5% 50,632 75,632
US Dollars +5% 3,010 (3,309)
Euro +5% (11,462) (14,486)
Japanese Yen +5% 32,370 6,826
GBP +5% (89) (175)

The effect of decrease in currency rate is expected to be equal and opposite to the effect
of the increases shown above.

c) Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result
of changes in equity prices. Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Group
to equity price risk, consist of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”). The Group manages this risk by diversifying its investments on the basis
of the pre-determined asset allocations across various categories, continuous appraisal of
market conditions and trends and management estimate of long and short term changes
in fair value.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the changes in fair value to reasonably
possible changes in equity prices, with all other variables held constant.

2023 2022
Changein Effect on Changein Effect on
equity price equity equity price equity
KD KD
Unquoted equities +5% 50,632 +5% 75,632

The effect of decreases in equity prices is expected to be equal and opposite to the effect
of the increases shown above.
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Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation causing the other party toincurafinancial loss. Financial assets which potentially
subject the Group to credit risk consist principally of work in progress, trade and other
receivables (excluding advance to suppliers and subcontractors, and prepaid expenses),
contract assets, due from related parties, short term deposits and bank balances. Work
in progress, trade and other receivables, contract assets and due from related parties
are presented net of provision of expected credit losses. Credit risk with respect to trade
receivables is limited due to the large number of customers and their dispersion across
different industries.

Trade receivables, contract assets and work in progress

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified model of recognizing lifetime expected credit
losses for all trade receivables, contract assets and work in progress as these items do not
have a significant financing component. In measuring the expected credit losses, trade
receivables, contract assets and work in progress have been assessed on a collective basis
respectively and grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due.

The contract assets and work in progress relate to unbilled amounts that have substantially
the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same type of contracts. The
Group has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a
reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets and work in progress.

The Group measures the loss allowance on contract assets and work in progress at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL, taking into account the historical default experience and
the future prospects of the industry.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made
during the current year in assessing the expected credit losses for contract assets and
work in progress.

The expected loss rates are based on the ageing profile of customers as well as the
corresponding historical credit losses during that period. The historical rates are adjusted
to reflect current and forwarding looking macroeconomic factors affecting the customer’s
ability to settle the amount outstanding. However given the short period exposed to
credit risk, the impact of these macroeconomic factors has not been considered significant
within the reporting period.

Tradereceivablesare written off (i.e.derecognized) when thereis noreasonable expectation
of recovery. Failure to make payments within 730 days for receivables from government
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entities and 365 days for receivable from individual customers and corporate customers
from the invoice date and failure to engage with the Group on alternative payment
arrangement amongst other is considered indicators of no reasonable expectation of
recovery and therefore is considered as credit impaired.

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables based on the Group’s
provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss experience does not show significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments, the provision for expected credit
loss are based on past due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer base.

2023
Gross carrying caGr:o?rs; Gross carrying Gross carrying c;:o?: Gross Average
amount amoxntg— amount amount - due amgung carrying ex ect%d Loss
- trade contract - other fromrelated ° workin  @mount- Io.fs rate  2llowance
receivables receivables parties Total
assets progress
KD KD KD KD KD KD KD
0-30days 2,285,208 195,642 29,407 30 16,832 2,527,119 0.14% 3,604
31- 60 days 347,872 181,120 25,614 - 18,512 573,118 0.25% 1,448
61-90days 211,826 189,710 49,142 35 40,111 490,824 0.41% 2,002
91 -180 days 419,363 607,605 41,899 13,150 64,609 1,146,626 0.50% 5,751
181 - 365 days 438,964 233,220 157,887 19,537 188,054 1,037,662 1.32% 13,667
’Sg;’s"e 365 3049410 3372318 3740951 1591492 7,657,974 19412145  2380% 4,620,930
6,752,643 4,779,615 4,044,900 1,624,244 7,986,092 25,187,494 4,647,402
2022
Gross carrying caGrrro?rs; Gross carrying Gross carrying cfr:o?: Gross Average
amount amoxntg— amount amount - due amgung carrying ex ectged Loss
- trade contract - other fromrelated ° workin  amount- Ioss rate  2llowance
receivables receivables parties Total
assets progress
KD KD KD KD KD KD KD
0-30days 1,499,863 675,403 389,107 102 15,099 2,579,574 0.25% 6,325
31- 60 days 544,107 322,888 27,989 - 223,869 1,118,853 0.50% 5,626
61-90days 345,844 224,008 17,022 - 141,396 728,270 0.54% 3914
91 - 180 days 446,532 528,410 47,850 15,351 3,595 1,041,738 0.50% 5,259
181 - 365 days 350,219 313,513 5,723 22,430 190,726 882,611 1.69% 14,939
gg;);/e 365 2,648,215 2,792,355 3,301,547 1,608,790 7,088,789 17,439,696  2467% 4,302,791
5,834,780 4,856,577 3,789,238 1,646,673 7,663,474 23,790,742 4,338,854

Credit risk exposure

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum exposure to credit risk.
The maximum net exposure to credit risk by class of assets at the consolidated financial
position date is as follows:
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2023 2022
KD KD

Work in progress 7,007,353 6,841,968
Trade and other receivables (excluding advance to suppliers and
subcontractors, and prepaid expenses) 8,601,609 7,525,129
Contract assets 3,662,831 3,794,192
Due from related parties 1,268,170 1,290,599
Short term deposits 802,930 1,200,000
Bank balances 1,361,653 556,795

22,704,546 21,208,683

The Group's credit risk bearing assets can be analysed by the industry wise sector as
follows:

2023 2022
KD KD
Industry sector:
Trading and contracting 20,539,963 19,451,888
Banks and financial institutions 2,164,583 1,756,795
22,704,546 21,208,683

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting commitments
associated with financial liabilities, arises because of the possibility (which may often be
remote) that the Group could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to
close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the
Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available
as well as the support from the shareholders.

The maturity profile of financial liabilities is as follows:
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On Less than More than
2023 Demand one year one year Total
KD KD KD KD
Term loans - 1,425,000 11,288,000 12,713,000
Trade and other payables (excluding ) i 6117241
advances from customers) 6,117,241 o
Due to related parties 63,305 - - 63,305
Bank overdrafts - 670,921 - 670,921
63,305 8,213,162 11,288,000 19,564,467
On Less than More than
2022 Demand one year one year Total
KD KD KD KD
Term loans - 975,000 12,388,000 13,363,000
Trade and other payables (excluding ) 5.375,892 i 5.375,892
advances from customers
Due to related parties 65,851 - - 65,851
Bank overdrafts - 392,055 - 392,055
65,851 6,742,947 12,388,000 19,196,798

31. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures its financial assets such as financial assets at FVOCl and non - financial
assets such as right of utilization at their fair value at the end of the financial period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

« In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
+ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

All financial or non-financial instruments for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
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liabilities.

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurementisunobservable.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments and non-financial
instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 2 Level 3
2023 2022 2023 2022
KD KD KD KD
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
Investment in unquoted securities 1,012,647 1,512,647
Right of utilization 6,805,000 4,641,000

Movement on level 3 during the year is as follows:

2023 2022
KD KD
At 1 January 1,512,647 1,512,647
Net change in fair value (500,000) -
At 31 December 1,012,647 1,512,647

During the year, no transfers were made between levels 1, 2, and 3.
32. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by
pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group manages the capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio, which is calculated by net debt
value divided by total invested capital. Net debt is calculated as the total of term loans and
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bank overdrafts less cash and cash equivalents. The total capital resources are calculated
as equity that appears in the consolidated statement of financial position in addition to
net debt.

For the purpose of capital risk management, the total capital resources consist of the

following components:

2023 2022
KD KD

Term loans 12,713,000 13,363,000

Bank overdrafts 670,921 392,055

Less: cash and cash equivalents (2,176,150) (1,768,578)

Net debt 11,207,771 11,986,477

Equity attributable to the shareholders of Parent Company 19,969,548 17,634,088

Total capital resources 31,177,319 29,620,565

Gearing ratio 35.95% 40.47%
33. CONTINGENCIES

2023 2022

KD KD

Letters of credit 1,173,879 304,916

Letters of guarantees 11,379,615 10,923,442

12,553,494 11,228,358

There are certain other legal cases in which the Group is a party and are still in progress.
Management assesses the legal provision at the end of each reporting period and does
not anticipate any other major legal or financial impact on the Group as a result of these
cases.

35. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING AND GENERAL ASSEMBLY

The Parent Company’s Ordinary Annual General Assembly meeting (“AGM”), held on 30
April 2023, approved the annual consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2022. Furthermore, no dividends were declared or distributed for the
financial year ended 31 December 2022.

36. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative information has been reclassified to conform to the current year’s
presentation. Such reclassification did not affect previously reported profit or loss, equity
or opening balances of the earliest comparative period presented and accordingly a third
consolidated statement of financial position is not presented.
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